ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS COW TTEE
May 2, 2002
3:47 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Randy Phillips, Vice Chair
Senat or Ben Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Rick Hal ford
Senat or Bettye Davis

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 165( RES)
"An Act relating to the Kenai River Special Mnagenent Area; and
providing for an effective date."”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 370
"An Act establishing procedures relating to constitutional
conventions."

MOVED CSSB 370( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 212(L&0O)

"An Act requiring a subcontractor to obtain workers' conpensation
i nsurance covering the subcontractor and the subcontractor's
enpl oyees and establishing responsibility of a contractor for
obtai ning workers' conpensation coverage for the subcontractor
and the subcontractor's enployees if the subcontractor fails to
obtain workers' conpensation coverage; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 300

"An Act relating to the procurenment of certain travel services."
MOVED SCSHB 300( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HB 165 — No previous action to record.

SB 370 — No previous action to record.
HB 212 - See Labor and Commrerce m nutes dated 4/25/01 and

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- May 2, 2002



3/ 28/ 02.
HB 300 — No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Represent ati ve Ken Lancaster

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 165.

M. JimStratton

Director

Di vi sion of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation
Department of Natural Resources

400 W I | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 165.

M. Ted Wl man

Pr esi dent

Kenai River Special Managenent Area Advi sory Board
3500 Twi li ght Lane

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 165.

M. Sam McDowel |
No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 165.

M . Dal e Bondur ant
31864 Moonshi ne Dr.
Sol dot na, AK 99669

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 165.

M . Don Ransey
35774 Carlisle Dr.
Sol dot na, AK 99669

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 165.

Dr. Gerald MBeath
No address given
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 370.

M. Joe Bal ash

Al de to Senator Gene Therriault

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 370.

Ms. Any Erickson
Aide to Representative Lisa Mirkowski

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2-

May 2, 2002



Al aska State Capitol
Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 212.

M . Don Etheridge
FLCI O Al aska State
No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 212.

M. Paul G ossi

Director

Di vision of Wrkers’ Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent
PO Box 21149

Juneau, AK 99802-1149

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 212.

M. Allen WI son
Legi slative Chair
Al aska State Honebuil ders Associ ation
No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 212.

Ms. Barbara Huff-Tuckness

Director of CGovernnental and Legislative Affairs
Teansters Local 959

No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 212.

M. Charlie MIIler
Al aska National |nsurance
No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 212.

Ms. Sara McNair-G ove

Property Casualty Actuary

Di vi si on of Insurance

Departnent of Community & Econom c Devel opnent
P. O Box 110805

Juneau, AK 99811-0805

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 212.

Representati ve Joe Hayes

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 300.

M. Vern Jones

Chi ef Procurenent O ficer

Di vi sion of General Services
Department of Adm nistration

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3-

May 2, 2002



PO Box 110200
Juneau, AK 99811-0200
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 300.

Ms. Sally Huntley

Frontier Travel

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 300.

M. Bill Beck
Airlines Online

Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 300.

Ci ndy Bettine

ABC Tr ave

Pal mer, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 300.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-27, SIDE A

CHAIRVAN CGENE THERRIAULT <called the Senate State Affairs
Commttee neeting to order at 3:47 p.m Present were Senators
Phillips, Stevens and Chairman Therriault.

The first order of business before the conmttee was HB 165.

#HB 165

HB 165- KENAI Rl VER SPECI AL MANAGENMENT AREA

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said Senator Hal ford had sone concerns about
HB 165 but was called to the Governor’s office. He announced he
would hear the bill to get the issues out and hold it in
committee. He said Representative Lancaster approached him
earlier with a proposed CS that he would like to get on the table
for consideration. He asked if Representative Lancaster wanted
to make conments to the CS.

REPRESENTATI VE KEN LANCASTER said yes. He noted that the
proposed CS was version J.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS wanted to make sure that the townshi p ranges had

been thoroughly checked because there were m stakes nmade in the
past .

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- May 2, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER said there were mstakes when the
process was started a couple of years ago that were corrected.
He said HB 165 related to adding |ands to the Kenai R ver Speci al
Managenent Area (KRSMR). The CS takes out 3,543 acres along the
south side of Kenai Lake from Snug Harbor Road up to the dam and
the powerhouse at Cooper Lake. He hoped this would address
concerns that were expressed to him

CHAl RVAN  THERRI AULT asked if the road went through the
hi ghlighted area on the map in the bill packet.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER said it did. He said this process has
been going on for at |east two years. As mayor of Sol dotna, he
sat on the board that held public hearings about the addition of
these lands. He noted they were all state |ands and there would
be no acquisition or purchasing of new | ands. HB 165 woul d put
the lands into the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) so that
the | ands could be nanaged by DNR The plan was adopted after
commttee mneetings and public hearings over two years in
Anchorage and on the Kenai Peninsul a. He said DNR adopted the
| anguage portion of the plan in Decenber 1997. The |ands nust be
transferred by the Legislature. This was what HB 165 attenpts to
do.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked how nany acres were in the transfer.
REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER sai d about 4, 200 acres.
SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked if that was reduced from 7, 900.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER sai d yes. He noted that HB 165 had no
fiscal note.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if nmoving the lands into this
desi gnati on added restrictions on the use of the |and.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER said DNR had a process to allow public
access or use of the lands. The other departnents that currently
control this land did not. He believes HB 165 would give the
public a process to be able to access the | ands.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if the lands were in the general state
domain in DNR

VR JIM STRATTOQON, Di rector, Di vision of Parks & CQutdoor

Recreation, Departnment of Natural Resources, said the |ands were
currently in general state |ands and managed by the Division of

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- May 2, 2002



Par ks & Qutdoor Recreation for outdoor recreation purposes. The
addition of these lands would allow DNR to inprove recreationa

access to the lands. He said there were a couple of projects DNR
was interested in but they weren't able to sign the obligation
that they would manage the lands and facilities for outdoor
recreation access in perpetuity because the |ands were not
designated to Parks & Qutdoor Recreation. He said when those
| ands were designated, they would be able to do that and begin to
devel op sone projects such as inproved boat |aunch ranps.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there was any organi zed group in the
area that opposed HB 165.

MR. STRATTON said he was not aware of any.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER said he was not aware of any. He said
Senat or Torgerson had sone concerns, but he hoped the CS would
cl ear those concerns up.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if the CS had been brought to Senator
Torgerson’s attention.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER said a copy had been given to his aide.
MR. STRATTON sai d DNR supported HB 165 with the proposed CS.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT pointed at the map in the bill packet and
asked if the highlighted area was the acreage the CS dropped out
of the plan.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER & MR STRATTON sai d that was correct.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT poi nted at the un-highlighted area of the nap
and asked if that was the acreage that was bei ng added.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER sai d there was nore acreage than the map
showed. In addition to that acreage, there was al so acreage in
t he Mbose Pass area and on the upper part of the Kenai R ver.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there was anybody present to testify
regardi ng HB 165.

MR. TED WELLMAN, President of the KRMSA Advisory Board, said he
had served on the Board since 1995 and was instrunental in
devel oping the plan that resulted in HB 165. He said he was al so
vi ce-president of the Kenai River Property Omers’ Association

He said he was a b55-year resident of Alaska and had used the
Kenai River all his life and had owned property there for over 20
years. He supported HB 165. The |l and additions were devel oped
through the public hearing process with neetings in Anchorage,
Sol dot na, Cooper Landing and Mbose Pass. He said the |ands were

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- May 2, 2002



selected close to the Kenai River so the entire watershed and
habitat would be protected. He said he is not aware of any
opposi tion. He said a nunber of organizations supported the
addition of these lands, including the Cook Inlet Agriculture
Associ ation, the Cooper Landing Comunity Cub, Alaska Fly
Fi shing, Al aska WIdland Adventures, the Cty of Soldotna, the
Kenai Peninsula Borough, the Friends of Cooper Landing and the
Kenai River Property Oamers’ Association.

CHAI RVAN THERRAI ULT asked if there were any questions for M.
Vel | man. There were none.

MR. SAM MCDOWELL said he has lived in Al aska since 1948. He has
been involved in resource managenent issues for over 50 years.
He said if we don't support HB 165, we would never have a river
| i ke the Kenai again. He said habitat is the nost inportant
thing, followed by resources and then users, because if you don’t
protect the habitation, there won't be any resources and there
won't be anything for the users.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for M.
McDowel | .  There were none.

MR. DALE BONDURANT said he owns property along 2000 feet of the
Kenai River, which he has put in a conservation easenent to
protect forever. He said the Kenai is one of the nost inportant
resources in the country and we need to protect it. He said he
fully supports HB 165. He said he believes in access as well

In 1997, he filed a federal suit to make sure that we had access
to all of the rivers in the country. He said it’s very inportant
that we continue with this type of thing. He said he would |ike
to see the acreage that was renoved in the CS protected as well.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for M.
Bondurant. There were none.

MR. DON RAMSEY said he was a 35-year resident of Al aska. He
said he used the Kenai River to catch fish for his famly for the
winter. He said he owned 430 feet of frontage on the Kenai R ver
that he has taken very good care of. He said he supports the
acquisition of the lands to protect the river because it is a
great resource and enjoyed by residents and visitors and has
great comrercial val ue.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT noted that the Future Managenent section on
page 2 of the background information provided by KRVSA said,
“Facility developnment for nost of the new |land would not be
consistent with KRVMBA's intent.” He said he had been trying to
express his concern over this in his previous question about
devel opnent .

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- May 2, 2002



He asked if there was anybody else who wished to testify on HB
165. There was nobody.

HB 165 was held in conmmttee.
#
The next order of business before the commttee was SB 370.
#SB 370
SB 370- CONSTI TUTI ONAL CONVENTI ON PROCEDURES

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said the Senate State Affairs Commttee
introduced SB 370 at his request. He said the bill deals wth
the constitutional convention question that is on the ball ot
every 10 years and would be on the ballot this year. He said he
| ooked into the events that would occur if the voters approved a
constitutional convention. He said the |ieutenant governor was
responsible for issuing the call for a constitutional convention.
This call was to be issued as close as possible to the origina
call for the Al aska Constitutional Convention in 1955 unless the
| egi sl ature placed different provisions in statute, which had not
been done.

He said he wasn’t sure we would want the del egates to be sel ected
in the sane districts that they had been in 1955. He was
concerned that those districts would not neet court approval
because they wouldn’t stand up to the one nan one vote standard.
He said SB 370 would restrict the call from being issued for
approxi mately one year until October 1, 2003. He said this delay
woul d allow the next |egislature and governor to negotiate the
passage of legislation to spell out the paranmeters under which
the call would be nade. He said the l|egislature could | ook at
t he geographi cal areas the del egates should be el ected from

DR. GERALD MCBEATH said he participated in two recent synposia on
the constitutional convention ballot referendumthat would be on
the ballot this fall. One was for the statew de League of Wnen
Voters convention in Kenai. The other was a synposi um sponsored
by Common Ground, which is an organization that |ooks at public
I ssues. He said there were several questions regarding the
uncertainty of what would happen if the voters were to approve
the referendum calling for a constitutional convention. He said
SB 370 reduces uncertainty by spelling out when the call would be
made and how del egates would be selected. At both synposi a,
there was a question about whether the del egates woul d be subject
to the Al aska Public O fices Comm ssion (APOC) rules. He said SB
370 addresses that concern.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- May 2, 2002



He said it was not clear why October 1 was selected in Sec.
15.50.080. The current Lieutenant CGovernor could issue the call
on Novermber 6'" but SB 370 would elininate that possibility and
only allow the incomng |ieutenant governor to issue the call.
He said this would give the legislature an opportunity to have
hearings during the first session of the 23'¢ Legislature. He
said Sec. 15.50.090 laid out a system of electing 80 del egates.
He felt 80 delegates would be too nmany. He suggests mirroring
the legislative election districts by having 60 seats, one
del egate from each house district and one from each senate
district. According to SB 370 the constitutional convention
woul d be held in Fairbanks. He said this nmakes sense because
that was where the original convention was held but the Fairbanks
of 1955 was very different from Fairbanks today. He believed SB
370 was a step in the right direction and served a useful
pur pose.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked for his affiliation.

DR. MCBEATH said he was a professor of political science at the
University of Alaska Fairbanks and was considered an expert in
the field. He wrote The Alaska State Constitution: A Reference
Gui de, which was published in 1997.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS asked if he had any practical experience as an
el ected official.

DR. MCBEATH said he served on the Fairbanks Northstar Borough
Board of Education from 1986 to 1995.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said QOctober 1° was chosen as the date for
the call in order to put the issue before the |egislature during
the next session. He said it was a fairly arbitrary date but it
al l owed for enough tine for the legislature to hold hearings and
work out a piece of legislation with the adm nistration. There
woul d al so be tinme after that to bring the public up to speed and
al l ow the candi dates enough tinme to run a camnpai gn.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said he understood the concern over the
nunber of del egates and woul d be open to changing the nunber. He
said he selected 80 del egates because he was concerned about the
rural districts, which cover |arge geographical areas. |In those
districts, there was the potential for two delegates from the
same community to be elected because that community happened to
have the largest population in the district. He said Dr.
McBeat h’ s proposal seened to be a conprom se between the original
55 del egates at the 1955 convention and the 80 del egates proposed

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- May 2, 2002



in SB 370.

He said individuals canpaigning to be delegates ought to be
subj ect to APCC provisions. If the public was concerned about
noney influencing canpaigns for legislators, then he expected
there would be the sane | evel of concern when the candi date woul d
be maki ng structural changes to the constitution.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked why the original Constitutional Convention
was hel d in Fairbanks.

DR. MCBEATH said he spoke with Thonas Stewart, who served as
Secretary to the Convention and was a Superior Court judge. M.
Stewart said the main reason they wanted to get the Convention
out of Juneau was because there were too nmany bars. He said the
second reason was because they felt that holding the Convention
in the atnosphere of a university town would contribute to the
devel opnment of a nodel constitution. He said they also wanted it
away fromthe site of legislative activity.

SENATOR PHILLIPS asked if the convention would be held in
Cct ober.

MR. JOE BALASH, Senate State Affairs Conmmttee Aide, said the
call would not be nmade until October of 2003. The del egates
woul d be el ected at the next general election in 2004. The dates
of the convention would be up to the |ieutenant governor and
woul d be one of the itens in the call.

SENATOR PHILLIPS said if the convention was held during the
academ c year, there m ght not be enough room on canpus.

MR. BALASH said the intent of SB 370 was not to spend a |ot of
time with the details. He said the dates of the convention were
certainly sonething that should be considered. Delaying the cal
for one year would give the legislature an opportunity to have
hearings on the issue and work out the details.

SENATOR PHILLIPS said the original Convention was held from
Novenber of 1955 through February or March of 1956.

DR. MCBEATH agr eed. He said there was a break to allow the
del egates to return to their communities and di scuss the issues.
He said the tenperature that year was 30 bel ow zero.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT said the dates of the convention were not

figured into the determnation of COctober 1% as the date of the
call.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- May 2, 2002



MR. BALASH said the Cctober 1% date would also allow for a
special session if it were necessary because of a veto.

SENATOR PHILLIPS said 30 below was a good incentive to get the
j ob done qui ckly.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT joked that Fairbanks had torn down a |ot of
its bars since 1955.

SENATOR STEVENS joked that the convention could be held in Adak
where there were no bars.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT sai d he was open to suggestions regarding the
nunber of del egates.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS said 60 sounded |ike a nore workabl e nunber than
80. He noted that the Senate with 20 nmenbers was able to get
things done faster than the House of Representatives with 40
menbers.

SENATOR STEVENS said it looked like sone of the original
del egates in 1955 were elected fromjudicial districts.

DR. MCBEATH said in 1955 the Legislature drew up a new schene

rather than wusing the legislative districts. Seven of the
districts were based on judicial districts and 12 to 15 del egates
were elected on a statew de basis. He noted that schene woul d

not neet the one man one vote Suprene Court requirenent.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said SB 370 was i ntended as default | anguage.
If the legislature wanted to come up with sonething different, it
coul d. He said wi thout an agreenent by the |egislature, SB 370
woul d be the default rather than the 1955 | anguage, which woul d
cause a problemw th the one man one vote requirenent.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how nmany tinmes the constitutiona
convention question had been on the ballot since statehood.

DR. MCBEATH said this would be the fifth tinme.
SENATOR PHI LLIPS noted that it passed in 1970.
DR. MCBEATH said it passed in 1970 but was challenged and
i nval i dat ed. He said the question was on the ballot again in
1972 and that is why we now have the question on the ballot every

10 years from 1972. He noted that the ballot neasure was
defeated in 1972, 1982 and 1992. In 1992, the vote was 63%

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- May 2, 2002



agai nst .

SENATOR STEVENS asked what the voter turnout was in 1992. He
said voter turnout in 1982 was 50%

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked Senator Phillips if he wanted to nove
an anmendnent to change the nunber of del egates to 60.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS noved Anmendnent #1, changing the nunber of
del egates to 60, one elected from each house district and one
fromeach senate district.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT clarified that “Two delegates shall be
el ected from each house district” would be deleted on page 1,
line 12 and replaced with |anguage electing one delegate from
each house district and one delegate from each senate district
for a total of 60 delegates. He asked if there was any objection
to Anendnent #1.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked Dr. MBeath if 60 was a good nunber.

DR. MCBEATH noted that there were 55 delegates in 1955 because
there were 55 franers of the Anerican Constitution and they felt
that was a significant nunber. He said 60 seened like a good
nunber because 60 people could fit in one room and have a floor
di scussi on on an issue.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there m ght be a problemw th having
an even nunber rather than an odd nunber of del egates.

DR. MCBEATH said that was al ways a questi on.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said that just meant there would be a tie and
things would fail. He said Anendnent #1 was before the
commttee. He asked if there was any objection to Anendnent #1.

There bei ng no objection, Amendnent #1 was adopt ed.

CHAIl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any other anendnents.
There were none. He asked if there were any other issues to cone
before the commttee on SB 370. There were none.

SENATOR PHILLIPS noved CSSB 370(STA) out of commttee wth
attached fiscal note and i ndividual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, CSSB 370(STA) noved out of conmttee

with attached fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.
#

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- May 2, 2002



The next order of business before the commttee was HB 212.
#HB 212

HB 212- WORKERS' COVP: CONTRACTORS & SUBCONTRACTOR

M5. AMY ERI CKSON, Aide to Representative Lisa Mirkowski and the
House Labor & Commerce Committee, said HB 212 addressed a decade-
| ong i ssue regardi ng workers’ conpensation insurance coverage for
sol e-proprietors, individuals working for thenselves wthout
enpl oyees. Current statutes did not require sole-proprietors to
carry workers’ conpensation insurance but did require general
contractors to carry workers’ conpensation insurance on their
enpl oyees. She said the workers’ conpensation board determ ned,
based on the relative nature of work test, that in certain cases
injured sole-proprietors were actually acting as enpl oyees of the
general contractor. Because of these determ nations, insurance
conpani es charged general contractors additional premuns for
sol e-proprietors. She said sonetines these extra prem uns were
charged after the policy was audited and therefore had not been
anticipated nor included in their bid.

She said a statew de task force was established to | ook at the
problem identifying several different possibilities. HB 212 is
the ultimte conpromse the task force cane up wth. She said
requiring sole-proprietors to provide their own workers’
conpensation coverage would elimnate any gray area, give all
parties equity and allow for risks and associated costs to be
antici pated and recovered in the bidding process.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said the commttee had given Ms. Erickson a
copy of a proposed CS. He asked if she had a chance to discuss
the CS wth Representative Mirkowski .

M5. ERI CKSON sai d al though Representative Mirkowski had seen the
CS, they had not had a chance to discuss it because she had been
on the floor all day.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said he developed the CS after talking with
menbers of the Senate and seeing that there seened to be a | ot of
di ssatisfaction wth HB 212. He said he was looking for a
different way to approach the issue. He asked if there was
anyone who wi shed to testify.

MR. DON ETHERI DGE said he was testifying on behalf of the AFL-C O

Al aska State in support of HB 212. He said they believed it
would create a nore equitable playing field for all of the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- May 2, 2002



subcontractors that bid on a project. He said sonme of the
subcontractors taking a risk and not purchasing the insurance
were able to underbid others and the general contractor becane
| i abl e for everything.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were questions for M.
Et heri dge. There were none.

MR. PAUL CGROSSI, Director, Division of Wrkers Conpensation,
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent, asked if the CS had
been i ntroduced.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said the CS was nenti oned but was not adopted
as a wor ki ng docunent.

MR. GROSSI said a task force consisting of honebuil ders, | abor
the insurance industry, insurance brokers, the tinber exchange
and the W rkers’ Conpensation Commttee of Alaska put HB 212

t oget her. He said it was a conpromse trying to deal with the
probl em of the risk involved with subcontractors working for a
general contractor. He said when a subcontractor got injured

they filed a claim with the W rkers’ Conpensation Board.
Sonmetinmes they were found to be enployees. As a result of that,
t he insurance conpani es charged the general contractor a prem um
for that potential risk. He said the honebuilders canme to the
Division a couple of years ago with the issue, which pronpted the
group getting together and comng up with HB 212. He said they
| ooked at several possible solutions, including waivers and
requiring the general contractor to cover everybody. He said the
solution in HB 212 was chosen because it was the |east expensive
way of handling the problem

CHAIRVAN  THERRI AULT said the word “conprom se” denot ed
rel uct ance.

MR. GROSSI said the working group was a |arge, diverse group of
people and there was difficulty getting agreenent anong them He
said HB 212 fixes the problem puts certainty back into the
situation and allows for predictability of cost. He said HB 212
woul d al | ow everyone to know exactly where the liability would be
and who woul d be responsi bl e for coverage.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said it seened |like the uncertainty cane from
the regulations of the relative nature of work test.

MR. GROSSI said the relative nature of work test was a regul ation
that was a result of Suprene Court case |aw.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said often a court case decided one factor
only to create a nunber of other questions, which the courts

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- May 2, 2002



woul d have to cone back and clarify further. He asked if the
proposed CS would bring nore clarity to the question of when a
sol e-proprietor is acting as an enpl oyee.

MR. GROSSI said he sent the CS to his hearing officers to ask
them what it did. They said it codified the laws that exist
currently but it didn't really change anything. He said that
doesn’t take away the uncertainty. He said it would eventually
have to be decided in the courts. He said the original bil
removes all uncertainty, which is a benefit over the way it’'s
done now.

TAPE 02-27, SIDE B
4:35 p.m

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said that uncertainty is renoved because HB
212 woul d require coverage regardl ess of the situation.

MR CGROSSI said all subcontractor sole-proprietors would be
required to have workers’ conpensation coverage, not all sole-
proprietors.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked why we should differentiate between
when a sol e-proprietor conmes into the home to |ay carpet one day
and when he lays carpet in a house in a new subdivision the next
day. He said in one instance the sole-proprietor would be
required to have workers’ conpensation coverage and in the other
he woul dn’ t.

MR. GROSSI said that had nore to with whether the purchaser was a
consuner or a producer. He said there is never any potenti al
liability for a consunmer who is sinply a custoner.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said it was the sanme sol e-proprietor doing
the sane job. He asked if M. Gossi had seen the revised 2002
rates for sole-proprietor policies based on assigned risk in bil
packet, which listed the dollar anounts of premuns for sole-
proprietors who purchase the insurance for thenselves that were
in the bill packet.

MR, CGROSSI said that probably canme from the Division of
| nsurance, not his office.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT said this would be the cost to the individual
as laid out in HB 212. He asked if there were any questions for
M. Gossi. There were none.

MR. ALLEN WLSON, Legislative Chair, Alaska State Honebuil ders,

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- May 2, 2002



said he had worked on this issue for several years. He said he
faxed the proposed CS to his co-chair and one of the other task
force nenbers to get their opinion on it. He said they were
intrigued by the approach and especially liked the definition of
a subcontractor. He said it seened clearer than the current
relative nature of work test. He said they would |ike sone tine
to look at it and get it to other task force nenbers and cone
back and offer further input.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said during the | ast canpaign he heard froma
constituent who was a sole-proprietor doing drywall work. The

constituent conplained that the State required several |icenses,
i nsurance and bonding and he had to do a lot of work just to
cover those costs. He said the constituent wanted the

| egi slature to consider going in the other direction, which may
not be realistic. Wen he saw HB 212, he thought it was a step
in the opposite direction than his constituent was encouraging
him to go. He al so heard several comments from his coll eagues
that led himto believe the original version of HB 212 woul d have
probl ens passing the Senate. He asked M. WIson what comments
he had heard from his associ ati on nenbers.

MR. WLSON said the association was nade up primarily of genera
contractors. He said they were caught in a catch-22 where they
were asking their sole-proprietor subcontractors to get a
wor kers’ conpensation policy because they were getting charged
for it after the fact and could not recover the investnent. The
sol e-proprietor subcontractor is not required to get workers’

conpensati on coverage. He said they had to make the decision
whether to operate illegally and use the subcontractor or add
themto the payrolls, which is nore expensive than the insurance
cover age. He said when you're in business for vyourself,

generally the higher the risk you assune, the higher the reward.
The association nmenbers agreed that you should be able to take
that risk. However they did not want to have to pay for it. He
said that was why the nature of work test in the CS has sone

appeal and he felt his association nenbers would like it.
However, he had to ask if it provided enough protection when the
i nsurance conpanies did their audits. He said at first glance

the CS seened to neet those requirenents.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked about the workability of the nature of
work test if a sole-proprietor subcontractor brought his own
tools to the job or used a forklift on the jobsite.

MR, WLSON said especially in custom honebuilding, the genera

contractor would work with the honeowner to pick out carpeting.
Because the general contractor gets a better deal on carpet

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- May 2, 2002



because of volune, he would purchase the carpet. The installer
woul d supply tack strips, glue, nails, |labor and tools. He said
under the current nature of work test the installer would be
considered an enpl oyee because the general contractor supplied
the carpet. He suggested renoving “materials” from subparagraph
(F) in Sec. 3 of the CS because that word m ght put them back in
the sane situation

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for M.
Wl son. There were none.

V. BARBARA  HUFF- TUCKNESS, Di rector of Gover nnent al and
Legislative Affairs, Teansters Local 959, said they were in
support of HB 212. She said Teansters Local 959 represented a
| ot of truckers, some of who were in a single owner-operator
status, others who worked as owner-operators for part of the year

and as subcontractors for the other part of the year. She said
some of the truckers would purchase workers’ conpensation
i nsurance in accordance W th t he hi gh-ri sk t rucki ng

classification. Ohers would not by calling thensel ves busi ness
managers or by getting a | esser policy.

She said Lynden Transport hired subcontractors during peak tines
of the year and required that they have workers’ conpensation
i nsurance or buy into Lynden’s plan, which was a much higher
policy. She said when the trucking industry was deregul ated the

truckers thenselves becane very regul ated. She said sone
truckers did carry the insurance, but others did not. She said
if you were looking at the sanme costs, you would have a |eve
pl aying field. She noted that this was not a union versus

nonuni on i ssue. She believed the policy increased to $3,000 this
year.

MS. HUFF- TUCKNESS said a trucker mght decide that they were an
owner -operator and they wanted to run the risk that they were not
going to get in an accident. She said the next week that trucker
mght flip their truck over and get hurt or killed. She said
current statute had a big enough | oophole that those individuals
could make that choice. She said she did not wish to give an
opinion on the proposed CS because she had not had a chance to
discuss it wth her coll eagues.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for M.
Huf f - Tuckness. There were none.

MR. CHARLI E M LLER, Al aska National |nsurance, said he would |ike

to touch on a couple of the questions that came up earlier. The
first was the question of consuner versus contractor and why

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- May 2, 2002



there should be different applications of coverage for soneone
who laid carpet in a hone one day and for a contractor the next.
When the sole-proprietor laid carpet in a hone, there was no
| egal standing for a workers’ conpensation claim against the
homeowner . When the sole-proprietor |ays carpet for a general
contractor, there was a potential cause of action. He said those
were two conpletely different situations and the sol e-proprietor
was not being penalized for doing one job over the other, it was
sinply a matter of risk incurred.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said from M. Mller’s client’s perspective,
he could understand that they would potentially have to provide
cover age.

MR. MLLER said no one provided workers’ conpensation coverage
for honmeowners.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said if a sole-proprietor subcontractor was
determned to be an enployee, M. Mller’'s <client would
potentially have to provi de coverage.

MR. M LLER said that was correct.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT noted that even if it was determi ned that the
sol e-proprietor subcontractor was not an enpl oyee, there was the
cost of the litigation to get to that point.

MR. M LLER agr eed.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there was no way to clear up that
anbiguity.

MR. MLLER said they had hoped to do that with HB 212. He said
he understood this was what Chairman Therriault was trying to do
with the CS.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT said HB 212 would clear up anbiguity by
elimnating the question of who should provide the coverage. He
said there was still the issue of what rules the person would
have to play by and when it was determ ned they had crossed over
the line into being an enpl oyee.

MR. MLLER said that area was not as predictable as anyone woul d
like. He said there were two main solutions to the problem
di scussed by the workgroup. One of them was HB 212. The ot her
was sonewhat along the lines of the proposed CS, except with a
fix at the end. He said the CS did not address a solution it
just codified the problem He said the approach they discussed

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- May 2, 2002



woul d be a fixed point where there was no chance for appeal, no
chance for the injured party to go before the board and claim
that under the conditions of the relative nature of work test

they were an enployee despite whatever they had signed or what

the situation was before. He said that situation would still

exi st under the proposed CS. He noted that he hadn’t discussed
the proposed CS with his attorneys, but he felt it had been
di scussed enough for himto feel confident in this statenent. He
said cutting off avenues of appeal was an unappealing solution
because there <can be situations where the sole-proprietor

subcontractor felt that the only way he would get the job was to
sign on as a subcontractor. He said he didn't feel anybody
wanted to nmake a public policy call that cut off avenues of

appeal .

He said once there was a claim for workers’ conpensation and no
prem um had been paid, the only rational cost for the prem um was
the cost of the claim He said if someone were injured, the
general contractor couldn’t be presented with the cost of the
claim and it wasn't reasonable to expect the injured party to
cover the cost. He said it would be possible to backdate and
charge a standard premum for the anmount of time the
subcontract or - cone- enpl oyee had been on the job. In that case,
he said you already knew you had | ost. He said that was |ike
betting on a gane that had already been played. He said the
injured party avoided their responsibility to prepare for the
possibility of an injury but received the sanme benefit as soneone
who paid the premuns and prepared for that possibility.

MR. MLLER said the coment nmade earlier was that it was unfair
to force sole-proprietors to buy workers’ conpensation insurance.
He said workers’ conpensation is a |ong-established no-fault
system He said if a contractor were to cause a situation where
sonmeone got injured the contractor couldn't be sued or if an
enpl oyee cane to work drunk or disregarded safety protocol the
contractor had no recourse to deny the claim He said everyone
who hired enployees was required to purchase workers’
conpensation insurance. He said when a contractor didn't require
soneone who mght be working in the gray area between enpl oyee
and subcontractor to pay for workers’ conpensation insurance,
they were giving them the benefit that was allowed to all their
ot her enpl oyees. He said it could be |ooked at in a different
way; instead of forcing a sole-proprietor subcontractor to buy
the insurance, HB 212 really tried to nake them play by the sane
rules that everybody else had to play by. He said if you gave
them the benefits without requiring themto pay into the system
every other worker who paid into the system would be paying for
their benefits. He said this argunent might be simlar to the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- May 2, 2002



debate that’s brought up in political science class that you have
the right to free speech but does that give you the right to yel
fire in a crowled theater. He said you have a right to take a
chance that you may be injured.

He said the system didn't forget an injured party. He said an
i njured person would need to go to the doctor and they woul d need
noney to cover their rent. He said that person would be
receiving all the benefits of having a policy even though they
had not participated in the system to that date. He said just
because they apply for a claim doesn’t nean they're going to be

successful but that still costs the system in |litigation
expenses. There was still sonme degree of confidence that they
woul dn’t be forgotten. He said it seemed unfair to let them
avoid the cost of the protection because they wanted to be
i ndependent . He noted that they were not independent after the
injury. They becane very dependent on one part of the system or
anot her. He said that situation was what nade the task force

deci de against that solution. He said the other approach seened
to be nore rational because if everyone who thought they didn’t
need the coverage didn't get it, it would be chaos. He said no
one expected to have an injury that prevents himor her from ever
working in that field again.

He said HB 212 does not allow any profit margin increase to the
i nsurance industry. He said the added policies would go through
the residual market and be assigned to a particular pool and no

i nsurance conpany nakes noney off of that. |In fact, in the past
several years, the pool |ost noney and the prem um payers were
subsidizing it. He said everything seened to be lined up in

favor of HB 212 except for the fact that it was unpalatable to
tell someone they have to do sonmething to protect thensel ves when
they felt that they didn't need to.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any further questions for
M. MIller. There were none.

M5. SARA MCNAI R-GROVE, Property Casualty Actuary, Division of
| nsurance, Departnent of Community & Econonic Devel opnent, said
the Division participated in the discussions and the task force
that came up with HB 212. She said there were two approaches
that were discussed. One was the solution that was presented in
HB 212. She said the workgroup also discussed as their nost
desirable solution a way to define when a sole-proprietor was
acting as an independent contractor. She said several of the
previous testifiers had addressed the problenms wth that
approach. She said the current solution was a conprom se and it
woul d provide certainty.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- May 2, 2002



She said she | ooked at the proposed CS and would |ike nore tine
to study it. She said if there were clear guidelines on how to
determ ne whet her sonmebody was an independent contractor or an
enpl oyee and nake that determnation stick, it would be
preferable. One of the problens with that was the prem um audit
that takes place after a job ended. She said workers

conpensation policies were based on payroll, so the contractor
estimated what their payroll was going to be. After the job, the
contractor was audited to determne if their estimted payroll
net the actual payroll. She said if soneone was determ ned at
the beginning of the job to be an independent contractor and
broke one of the conditions of the relative nature of work test
and was subsequently determ ned to be an enpl oyee, there would be
an additional prem um based on the audit. She said if you can
clearly determne what situations nerit a premum being
coll ected, the general contractor could plan for those costs and
woul dn’t be surprised during the audit. She said that still
woul dn’t elimnate the problem

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked what triggered the determ nation that a
subcontractor was actually an enpl oyee during the audit process.

M5. MCNAIR-GROVE said they went back and |ooked at what the
individual did to determ ne whether they had been acting as an
enpl oyee or not.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there was a specific list of
guesti ons.

M5. MCONAIR-GROVE said there was a list of questions but she
didn’t know what those questions were.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked what caused those back premuns to be
triggered.

M5. MCONAI R-GROVE said she didn't know the specifics. She said
she could get a list of the types of things that were |ooked at
that was suggested by the National Council on Conpensation
| nsur ance.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for M.
McNai r - Grove. There were none. He asked if there was anybody
el se who wished to testify on HB 212. There was nobody.

HB 212 was held in committee.
#

The final order of business before the commttee was HB 300.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- May 2, 2002



#HB 300
HB 300- PROCUREMENT OF TRAVEL SERVI CES

REPRESENTATI VE JOE HAYES read the followwng from the sponsor
statenent .

HB 300 will allow for the exenption of contracts for
certain types of travel services including airplane
travel, hotel accommodations and travel agency services
fromthe procurenment procedures of AS 36. 30.

In February 2002, Alaska Airlines adopted a policy
simlar to other mpjor airlines capping travel agent
comm ssions from 5% of the total ticket price to $10
and $20 for one-way and roundtrip airline tickets,
respectively. March 2002 brought even worse news to
the agencies when the airlines declared that al

airline conmm ssions would cease. Al aska Airlines has
not yet cut their commssions to travel agents, but it
is expected that they will by My 2002. Due to the
abatenment of commissions, it has becone necessary for
many travel agencies to rely on agency fees to stay in

busi ness.

Since HB 300 will exenpt certain travel services from
pr ocur enent pr ocedur es codified in AS 36. 30,
adm nistrative agencies wll be able to choose trave

provi ders on a case-by-case basis. This will foster
conpetition by allowing for the consideration of all

agenci es...

Passing the bill wll give all travel agencies an
opportunity to provide state travel, thus protecting
and fostering Al askan jobs and busi nesses. | ask for

your support in passing this |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said the events of Septenber 11'" contributed
to the situation because people weren’'t flying, which caused huge
| osses for the airline industry. He said nost state travel was
pl anned by travel agents who did not charge a fee because the
State said they would use their services as long as they didn't
charge a fee.

He said Southeast Al aska had to bid their travel services out
because there weren’t enough travel agents in the area. He said
US Travel held that contract and charged $8 for a round trip
ticket and $4 for a one-way ticket. He said the letter dated
April 5, 2002 fromthe Departnment of Adm nistration to AAA Travel

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- May 2, 2002



that was in the bill packets exenplified what HB 300 was trying
to achieve. He said HB 300 was an issue of fairness to him |f
we requested services from businesses in our communities, he said
it was only fair that we conpensated them for those services.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if the fiscal note had been higher.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said the fiscal note was always $228, 000.
He said this nunber was based on the prices that were being
charged by US Travel. He said the State believed the contract
with US Travel would probably have to be renegotiated and the
fees would probably increase. He said we were going to have to
pay the sane price whether we dealt with one agency or several
because of econony of scal es.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said his personal preference was to renove
the findings and intent section of HB 300. He asked if there was
anything in the section that was necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said that was the way the bill was drafted.
He said it could be done in a letter if it pleased the conmttee.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for
Representati ve Hayes. There were none.

MR VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent Oficer, Departnent  of
Adm nistration (DOA), said in the past, travel agencies received
their revenue from airlines, hotels and rental car conpanies.
The consuners, including the State, did not have to pay for their
servi ces. He said that had changed since all of the nmgjor
airlines had or were soon going to cut conmm ssions conpletely.
He said it was the State’'s policy to get services for free
whenever possible and only after they could not get the services

for free would they bid out for services. He said this policy
resulted in contracts in Juneau, Wangell, Petersburg, Haines,
Cordova, Seward and Dillingham

MR JONES said HB 300 would not prevent the State from
establishing travel agency contracts but DOA intended to follow
the intent of the bill and work with industry representatives to
establish a fee schedule of what the State would be willing to
pay for the services. He said any agency wlling to provide
their services at or below the costs set forward in the fee
schedule would be eligible to receive State business. He said
once the travel agents net those requirenents, the choice of
agents would be at the discretion of the traveler, the division

or the departnent. He noted that HB 300 would not affect
exi sting state contracts because they were |egal and binding and
the State had an obligation to fulfill them

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- May 2, 2002



He said HB 300 was not wi thout cost. He said DOA estimated the
di fference between conpetitively awarded contracts and negoti at ed
fees to be around $8 per ticket. Based on the volunme of trave

conducted by the State, that would be about $230,000 per year

He said the State bought about 50,000 tickets per year, 11,000 of
whi ch were purchased directly from the airlines. The remai ni ng
39,000 tickets were purchased through travel agencies. He said
he believed $8 was a conservative estinate.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if anything in the findings and intent
section of HB 300 needed to remain in the bill as a directive to
DOA.

MR. JONES said DOA would perform the sane with or wthout the
intent |anguage. He said HB 300 wouldn’t prevent DQOA from doi ng
a conpetitive procurenent if they thought it was necessary, but
it was DOA's intent to follow the intent of the bill.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for M.
Jones. There were none.

MS. SALLY HUNTLEY, Frontier Travel, said her conpany has done
business with the State since 1982 and hired staff specifically

to work with the State. She said they’ ve never received any
noney fromthe State. She said conpetition between agenci es has
kept the cost for State tickets fairly |ow She encouraged

support of HB 300 because it would keep a |ot of people enployed
and it would keep the State’'s ticket costs conpetitive and fair.
She said car conpanies and hotels have also cut commssions to
travel agencies. She said travel agencies provided an incredible
service and would like to continue to do so.

MS. HUNTLEY said the State did a phenonenal anount of business.
She said at the pre-bid neeting that norning the prospective
bi dders asked for an idea of how nuch the contract was worth

She said they were not able to get an answer and did not know
what they were getting into with the contract. She said she
woul d be able to take on several mllion nore dollars worth of
busi ness, but she could not take on five or ten mllion nore
dollars worth of busi ness because of the size of her agency. She
said she could continue providing service at the level she is
providing currently if HB 300 passed.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked if she canme down from Anchorage to testify
on HB 300.

MS. HUNTLEY said she had because she felt very strongly about
this bill.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- May 2, 2002



CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any further questions for
Ms. Huntley. There were none.

MR. BILL BECK, President of Airlines Online, said they have seven
staff and 15 independent contractors who work through their
office. He said they support HB 300. He said conpetition is the
best notivator to keep service standards high. He said there was
an advantage to establishing a fee structure and all ow ng choice
based on that fee structure. He said he was also at the pre-bid
conference and said DOA wanted bids for 17 areas around the state
but could not give any estimates of how nuch those contracts
woul d be worth, which nmade it very difficult to conme up with a
bid and provide for the appropriate amount of staff to handle the
contract. He noted that the Juneau contract with US Travel would
have to be renegotiated and that cost was likely to go up. He
said support of HB 300 would provide better conpetition and
servi ce.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for M.
Beck. There were none.

M5. CINDY BETTINE said she owned two travel agencies in Palner
and Wasilla, enploying 13 wonen, 4 of which were certified travel
counsel ors. She requested support of HB 300. She said the |ack
of conmi ssion and net conpensation was a big issue but was not
the nost inportant issue. She said all travel agents were not
created equal . She said sone agencies were waiving their fees
and assigning the |east experienced agent to the State account.
She said the State may be saving $20 to $30 in fees but nmay be
payi ng nmuch nore for their ticket because they were working with
i nexperienced agents. She said this was especially inportant
when considering the fiscal note. She said it was inportant that
the travel business renmain conpetitive and HB 300 woul d probably
achieve that. She would like to see the bill passed through the
commttees and to the Senate floor so travel agencies could
continue providing service and saving travel ers noney.

CHAIl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions for M.
Betti ne. There were none. He asked if commttee nenbers felt
the sanme way he did about renmoving the findings and intent
section.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS noved Amendnent #1, deleting Sec. 1.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there was any objection to Arendnent
#1.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- May 2, 2002



There being no objection, Amendnent #1 was adopt ed.

SENATOR PHILLIPS noved SCSHB 300(STA) out of conmttee wth
attached fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, SCSHB 300(STA) was noved out of

comm ttee with attached fiscal not e and i ndi vi dual
recormendati ons.

#

ADJ OURNNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the Senate
State Affairs Conmttee neeting was adj our ned.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- May 2, 2002



